
MEMORANDUM      

To: Board of Trustees 
 Twin Falls School District 411  
From:  Eva Craner, Director of Public Relations 
Re:  Policy Updates   
Date: Aug. 10, 2020 
 
Second Reading: 
ISBA Updates: 

1120 Taking Office 
1120P Oath of Office 
2425 Parental Rights 
2520 Curricular Materials 
2540 Selection, Adoption & Removal of Curricular Materials 
3000 Entrance, Placement, and Transfer 
4175 Required Annual Notices - NEW 
4260 Records Available to the Public 
4260F District Record Request Form 
5110 Criminal History & Background Checks 
5340 Evaluation and Probation of Certificated Employees 
6400 Administrators 
8160 Contracting for Transportation Services 
 
 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Board of Trustees Taking Office 

 
POLICY NO:  1120 

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 1120-1 (ISBA 7/18 UPDATE) 

At the time of nomination, election, or appointment, each Trustee shall be a school district 
elector of the District and a resident of the trustee zone from which nominated and elected or 
appointed.  
 
Each Trustee shall qualify for and assume office on the next January 1 following his or her 
election or, if appointed, at the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees next following such 
appointment.  
 
An oath of office shall be administered to each Trustee, whether elected, re-elected, or appointed. 
The oath may be administered by the clerk or by a Trustee of the District. If appointed, the oath 
shall be administered at a regular meeting of the Board; it may not be administered at a special 
meeting. The records of the District shall show such oath of office to have been taken and by 
whom the oath was administered and shall be filed with the official records of the District.  
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 1140 Vacancies 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-501 Board of Trustees 
 I.C. § 33-504 Vacancies on Boards of Trustees 
 I.C. § 59-401 Loyalty Oath—Form 
 I.C. § 59-402 Time of Taking Oath 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 11/12/18 



PROCEDURE TITLE:                 Oath of Office                       PROCEDURE NO: 1120P 
 PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 1120P-1 (ISBA 7/18 UPDATE) 

An oath of office is required to be administered to each School Board Trustee, whether elected, 
re-elected, or appointed. The Trustee is required to take his or her oath within ten days after the 
Trustee has notice of his or her election or appointment, or within 15 days from the 
commencement of his or her term of office. Before any Trustee, elected or appointed, enters 
upon the duties of his or her office, he or she must take the following oath: 
 

I do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and the 
Constitution of the State of Idaho, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of Trustee 
of the Twin Falls School District #411 according to the best of my ability. 

 
The oath is required to be administered by the clerk or by a Trustee. Additionally, the records of 
the District are required to show that such oath of office has been taken and by whom the oath 
was administered. Finally, this information is required to be filed with the official records of the 
District. 
 
A Trustee holds office from January 1 following their election in November until December 31 
in the year in which his or her term of office expires, unless he or she:  
 

1. Dies;  
2. Resigns as Trustee;  
3. Removes him or herself from the trustee zone of residence;  
4. Is no longer a resident or school district elector of the District;  
5. Refuses to serve as Trustee;  
6. Fails to attend four consecutive regular meetings of the Board without an acceptable 

excuse to the Board of Trustees; or  
7. Is recalled and discharged from office.  

 
If the Trustee is appointed, the oath of office must be administered at a regular board meeting. 
When appointed, he or she holds office from the time he or she takes the oath of office until 
December 31 in the year in which the original term of office to which he or she was appointed 
expires, unless he or she: 
 

1. Dies;  
2. Resigns as Trustee;  
3. Removes him or herself from the trustee zone of residence; 
4. Is no longer a resident or school district elector of the District; 
5. Refuses to serve as Trustee;  
6. Fails to attend four consecutive regular meetings of the Board without an acceptable 

excuse to the Board; or  
7. Is recalled and discharged from office. 

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 8/10/15 



 1120P-2 (ISBA 7/18 UPDATE) 

 11/12/18 



 

POLICY TITLE: 
 

Parental Rights 
 

 

 

POLICY NO: 2425   
PAGE 1 of 3 

 
 

 2425-1 (ISBA 2016) 
 

The Board of Trustees encourages parents/guardians to be involved in their student’s school 
activities and academic progress. 
 
The Board is mandated to adhere to laws, rules, and regulations including the Constitution of the 
State of Idaho; the rules of the Idaho State Board of Education (Idaho Administrative Procedures 
Act); the rules and regulations of the Idaho State Department of Education; the laws, rules, and 
regulations of the federal government and the U.S. Department of Education; as well as 
educational provisions outlined in the Idaho Code.   These mandates include the requirement 
stated at Article IX, Section1 of the Idaho Constitution that it is “. . . the duty of the Legislature 
of Idaho to maintain a general, uniform and thorough system of public, free common schools.” 
 
Based upon the above provisions, as well as the State’s mandated requirements for advancement 
and graduation, the District has established its practices, policies, and procedures as well as the 
approved curriculum and assessment program. The failure to follow the District’s practices, 
policies, and procedures as well as the school’s curriculum and assessment program amounts to 
the District’s violation of State and/or federal laws, rules, and regulations, including but not 
limited to the failure to provide a general, thorough, free, and uniform system of public education 
as well as putting the District’s operations and funding in jeopardy.  
 
Parents, guardians, and students are expected to abide by the District’s practices, policies, and 
procedures governing the operation of the schools, which are required, by various State and/or 
federal laws, rules, and regulations.  However, a student's parent/guardian has the right to 
reasonable academic accommodation if the accommodation does not substantially impact District 
staff and resources, including employee working conditions, safety and supervision on school 
premises for school activities and the efficient allocation of expenditures.  The District will strive 
to balance the rights of parents/guardians, the educational needs of other students, the academic 
and behavioral impacts to a classroom, a teacher's workload and the assurance of the safe and 
efficient operations of the school. 
 
If a parent has an objection to the District’s implementation of various mandates through the 
District’s practices, policies and procedures, or if a parent/guardian would like to request 
reasonable academic accommodation the appropriate avenue for the parent/guardian is first to 
seek to address such concerns through communication with the school’s administration, district 
administration and Superintendent.  Should that avenue not resolve the situation, a 
parent/guardian is free to address such concerns with the Board of Trustees in conformance with 
Board policy regarding public participation at Board meetings.  
 
A parent/guardian who has an objection to their child’s participation in the District’s adopted 
curriculum and/or the District’s implementation of practices, policies, and procedures in 
accordance with educational mandates, on the basis that it harms the child or impairs the parents' 
firmly held beliefs, values, or principles, may withdraw their child from the activity, class, or 
program. A parent/guardian who chooses to not have their child participate in the provided 
educational activity, with the exception of sex education curriculum, shall be responsible for 



 2425-2 (ISBA 2016) 

identification and provision of non-disruptive alternative educational activities for their child 
during any time of objection, at no cost to the District.  The final decision as to the placement of 
such alternative educational activity shall be at the discretion of the District, with input of the 
parent, consistent with the requirements for advancement and graduation and consistent with the 
reasonable accommodation requirements outlined above.  
 
In the case of dual credit courses offered by an institution of higher education, academic 
accommodations and excusing students from objectionable assignments is solely at the discretion 
of the higher education institution and not the District. The District has no control over the 
selection, adoption and removal of curricular materials and it is the responsibility of the parent to 
have knowledge of and/or review such prior to student enrollment.   
 
 
Access to Learning Materials 
 
Parents/guardians are entitled to review all learning materials, instructional materials, and other 
teaching aids used in the classroom of their student.  Parents/guardian can request access to 
learning materials by contacting the school’s administration during school hours.  
 
Notice 
 
The District shall annually provide parents/guardians with notice of their rights as specified in 
this policy. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 2340F Parental Opt-Out Form for Sex Education 
   2420 Parental Involvement 
   4105F Request to Address the Board 
   4175  Required Annual Notices 
 
Legal Reference: Idaho Constitution Article IX 
 I.C. § 32-1010 Intent of the Legislature – Parental Rights 
 I.C. § 32-1012 Parental Right to Direct the Education of Children 
 I.C. § 32-12131013 Interference with Fundamental Parental Rights 

Restricted 
 I.C. § 33-6001 Parental Rights 
 I.C. § 33-6002 Annual Notice of Parental Rights 
 I.D.A.P.A. 08, Titles .01, .02, .03 and .04 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 10/12/15 
ISBA 
REVISED: 10/10/16 



   
POLICY TITLE: 

 

Curricular Materials 
 

POLICY NO: 2520   
                      PAGE 1 of 2    

 
 

 2520-1 (ISBA 2008) 
 

The term “curricular materials” is defined as “textbook, instructional media, including software, 
audio/visual media, and internet resources.” 
 
The Board is legally responsible to approve and to provide the necessary curricular materials 
used in the District. Textbooks and instructional materials should provide quality learning 
experiences for students and: 
 
• Enrich and support the curriculum; 
• Stimulate growth in knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic value, and ethical standards; 
• Provide background information to enable students to make intelligent judgments; 
• Present opposing sides of controversial issues; 
• Be representative of the many religious, ethnic, and cultural groups and their contributions 

to our American heritage; 
• Depict in an accurate and unbiased way the cultural diversity and pluralistic nature of 

American society. 
 
The Board may establish a curricular materials adoption committee for the purpose of advising 
the Board on selection of curricular materials for use within the District that are not covered by 
the State Curriculum Materials Committee. At least one-fourth (1/4) of this committee must be 
comprised of persons other than public educators and trustees.  All meetings of the committee 
shall be held in open session and be duly noticed. 
 
Curricular materials may be made available for loan to students when the best interest of the 
District and student will be served by such a decision. Students will not be charged for normal 
wear. They will be charged replacement cost, however, as well as for excessive wear, 
unreasonable damage, or lost materials.  The professional staff will maintain records necessary 
for the proper accounting of all curricular materials. 
 
Any person may submit oral or written objections to any curricular materials under consideration. 
 
Curricular materials provided for dual credit courses offered by an institution of higher education 
are selected by the higher education institution and not the District. The District has no control 
over the selection, adoption and removal of curricular materials and it is the responsibility of the 
parent to have knowledge of and/or review such prior to student enrollment.   

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Cross Reference: 2530 Learning Materials Review 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-118A Curricular materials – Adoption procedures 
 I.C. § 33-512A District curricular materials adoption committees  
 IDAPA 08.02.03.112 Curricular Materials Selection 



 2520-2 (ISBA 2008) 

 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 



 

POLICY TITLE: 
 

Selection, Adoption, and Removal of 
Curricular Materials 

 

POLICY NO: 2540   
PAGE 1 of 1 

 
 

 2540-1 

Curriculum committees will generally be responsible to recommend textbooks and major 
instructional materials for consideration by the Board for curricular materials that are not covered 
by the State Curriculum Materials Committee.  Recommendations will be made to the 
Superintendent, with a final decision being made by the Board.  The function of the committees 
is to ensure that materials are selected in conformance with stated criteria and established District 
goals and objectives.   
 
For dual credit courses offered through institutions of higher education, the selection, adoption, 
and removal of curricular materials is handled by the higher education institution. The District 
has no control over the selection, adoption and removal of curricular materials and it is the 
responsibility of the parent to have knowledge of and/or review such prior to student enrollment.   
 
 

Selection and Adoption 
 
The curricular materials adoption committee should develop, prior to selection, a set of selection 
criteria against which curricular materials will be evaluated. The criteria should include the 
following along with other appropriate criteria. Curricular materials shall: 
 

• be congruent with identified instructional objectives; 
• present more than one viewpoint on controversial issues; 
• present minorities realistically; 
• present non-stereotypic models; 
• facilitate the sharing of cultural differences; and 
• be appropriately priced. 

 
Removal 

 
Curricular materials may be removed when they no longer meet the criteria for initial selection, 
when they are worn out, or when they have been judged inappropriate through the Learning 
Materials Review Process. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
 
REVISED:  



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Entrance, Placement, and Transfer 

 

POLICY NO: 3000   
PAGE 1 of 3 

 
 

 3000-1 (ISBA 2017) 

Every student has a basic right to attend school. His or her primary purpose in attending school is 
to engage in learning; and his or her cooperation and dedication is fundamental to obtaining a 
quality education. 
 
The Board of Trustees seeks to protect the rights of each student and promote the welfare of the 
student body. These student policies are intended to facilitate a quality experience for students in 
all activities related to the educational program. Each student should have the experiences that 
will enable him or her to become a useful and productive citizen. 
 
Entrance, Date, and Age 
 
No pupil may be enrolled in the kindergarten or first grade whose fifth or sixth birthday 
respectively does not occur on or before the first day of September of the school year in which 
the child registers to enter school.  Any child of the age of five years who has completed a private 
or public out-of-state kindergarten for the required 450 hours but has not reached the age and 
date requirements set above shall be allowed to enter the first grade. 
 
Initial Enrollment 
 
Immunization records or an appropriate waiver and birth certificate are required for admission to 
all District schools (subject to provisions of McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, see District 
Policy 3060). 
 
If a birth certificate is not provided upon enrollment of a student for the first time in elementary 
or secondary school, the District shall notify the person enrolling the student in writing that he 
must provide within 30 days either a certified copy of the student’s birth certificate, or other 
reliable proof of the student’s identity and birth date; which proof shall be accompanied by an 
affidavit explaining the inability to produce a copy of the birth certificate.  Other reliable proof of 
the student’s identity and birth date may include a passport, visa, or other governmental 
documentation of the child’s identity.  If the person enrolling a student fails to provide the 
information within the requested 30 days, the District shall immediately notify the local law 
enforcement agency of such failure and again notify the person enrolling the student, in writing, 
that he has an additional ten days to comply.  If any documentation or affidavit received pursuant 
to this section appears inaccurate or suspicious in form or content, the District shall immediately 
report the same to the local law enforcement agency.  Local law enforcement will investigate 
these reports.  Failure of a parent, or person in custody of a child, or a person enrolling a student, 
to comply with the documentation requirements of this section after a lawful request shall 
constitute a misdemeanor. 
 
A student transferring schools within the District need not provide proof of identity and birth date 
if the student’s record already contains such verified information. 
 



 3000-2 (ISBA 2017) 

Initial Placement 
 
The goal of the District shall be to place students at levels and in settings that will enhance the 
probability of student success. Developmental testing together with other relevant criteria, 
including but not limited to health, maturity, emotional stability, and developmental disabilities, 
may be considered in the placement of all students.  Final disposition of all placement decisions 
rests with the principal, subject to review by the Superintendent and the Board. 
 
Advanced Enrollment For Military Dependents 
 
Any member of the United States Armed forces who has received transfer orders to a location in 
Idaho and will, upon such transfer, reside in the District’s attendance boundary may enroll his or 
her child in the District regardless of where the child resides at the time of enrollment. 
 
 
Transfer 
 
District policies regulating pupil enrollment from other accredited elementary and secondary 
schools are designed to protect the educational welfare of the child and of other children enrolled 
in the District. 
 
Elementary Grades (K-8):  Any student transferring into the District will be admitted and 
placed on a probationary basis for a period of two weeks. 
 
Should any doubt exist with teacher and/or principal as to grade and level placement of the 
student, the student shall be subject to an educational assessment to determine appropriate grade 
and level placement. 
 
During the two-week probationary period, the student will be subject to observation by the 
teacher and building principal. 
 
Secondary Grades (9-12), Credit Transfer:  Requests for transfer of credits from any 
secondary school shall be subject to a satisfactory examination of the following: 
 
1. Appropriate certificates of accreditation; 
2. Length of course, school day, and school year; 
3. Content of applicable courses; 
4. The school facility as it relates to credit earned (i.e., lab areas for appropriate science or 
vocational instruction); 
5. An appropriate evaluation of student performance leading toward credit issuance; and 
6. Final approval of transfer credits will be determined by the high school principal, subject 
to review upon approval by the Superintendent and Board of Trustees. 
 
Transfer from Persistently Dangerous Schools 
 



 3000-3 (ISBA 2017) 

If any school within the District is found to be persistently dangerous in accordance with federal 
law, students attending the school shall be permitted to transfer to another traditional or charter 
school within the District which is not persistently dangerous and which is meeting annual yearly 
progress requirements. The transfer may be either permanent or temporary and lasting until the 
school of origin is no longer designated as persistently dangerous. Parents or guardians of 
students shall be notified that the school has been designated as persistently dangerous within ten 
days of being so designated.  Within 20 days of receiving such notification, students may be 
transferred to another school within the District. 
 
Any student who is the victim of a violent criminal offense on school grounds shall be permitted 
to transfer to another school within the District. 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 3060 Education of Homeless Children 
 4160 Parents Right-to-Know Notices 
 
Legal Reference: Art. IX, § 9, Idaho Constitution- Compulsory Attendance at School 
 I.C. § 18-4511 School Duties—Records of Missing Child—Identification 

Upon Enrollment—Transfer of Student Records 
 I.C. § 33-201 School Age 
 I.C. § 33-209 Transfer of Student Records – Duties 
 I.C. § 39-4801 Immunization Required 
 I.C. § 39-4802 Exemptions 
 20 U.S.C. § 7912 Unsafe School Choice 
 20 USC § 6313 Eligible School Attendance Areas 
 42 USC § 11432 Education of Homeless Children and Youths 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 1 0/9/17 
ISBA 
REVISED: 



 4000-1 

 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Required Annual Notices 

 
POLICY NO:  4175 

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 
The following policies, procedures, and forms shall be distributed on an annual basis.  
 
Distributed to students and parents/guardians: 
 

1. 2140 Student and Family Privacy Rights 
2. 2425 Parental Rights 
3. 3280 Equal Education, Nondiscrimination, and Sex Equity 
4. 3295P Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, and Cyber Bullying 
5. 3321 Student Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use 
6. 3340 Corrective Action and Punishment 
7. 3335 Academic Honesty 
8. 3500 Student Health/Physical Screenings/Examinations 
9. 3570F1 Student Records - Notification to Parents and Students of Rights Concerning a 

Student’s School Records 
10. 3575 Student Data Privacy and Security 
11. 4160 Parent Right-to-Know Notices 
12. 8245 Unpaid School Meal Charges 

 
Distributed to staff: 

1. 5120 Equal Employment Opportunity and Non-Discrimination 
2. 5265 Employee Responsibilities Regarding Student Harassment, Intimidation, and 

Bullying 
 

Public Distribution: 
1. 8200 Local School Wellness 

 
 
Policy History: 
Adopted on: 
Revised on:  
Reviewed on: 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Records Available to Public 
 

 
POLICY NO: 4260    

PAGE 1 of 6 
 

 

 4260-1 (ISBA 2015) 

Subject to the limitations provided herein, and as provided by law, full access to public records 
concerning the administration and operations of the District shall be afforded to the public.  
Public access to District records shall be afforded according to appropriate administrative 
procedures. 
 
Every person has the right to examine and take a copy of any public record at all reasonable 
times.  All District records except those restricted by state and federal law shall be made 
available to citizens upon written request for inspection at the Clerk's office. 
 
The Public Relations Director or designee shall serve as “Public Records Coordinator” with the 
responsibility and authority for ensuring compliance with the display, indexing, availability, 
inspection, retention, and copying requirements of federal law, state law, and this policy.  
Responsibility and authority for indexing shall include identifying the general subject matter of 
all public records kept or maintained by the District, the custodian of these records, and their 
physical location.  The identified physical location of the District’s records is provided in the 
Retention of District Records Policy #8605.  The Public Records Coordinator shall authorize the 
inspection and copying of the District's records only in accordance with the criteria set forth in 
this policy and in compliance with state and federal laws. 
 
A written copy of the Board’s minutes shall be available to the general public within a 
reasonable time after the meeting in which they are approved.  Drafts of the Board’s minutes are 
considered to be public records and shall be produced upon request.  However, the District shall 
watermark such public records with the statement “Unofficial Draft Minutes not yet reviewed or 
approved by Board.” 
 
Definitions 
 
A “public record” includes, but is not limited to, any writing containing information relating to 
the conduct or administration of the public's business prepared, owned, used, or retained by any 
state agency, independent public body corporate and political, or local agency regardless of 
physical form or characteristics. Provided, however, that personal notes created by a public 
official solely for his or her own use shall not be a public record as long as such personal notes 
are not shared with any other person or entity. 
 
A "writing" includes, but is not limited to, handwriting, typewriting, printing, photocopying, 
photographing, and every means of recording, including letters, words, pictures, sounds or 
symbols, or combination thereof; and all papers, maps, magnetic or paper tapes, photographic 
films and prints, magnetic or punched cards, discs, drums, or other documents. 
 
Records Exempt from Disclosure  
 
In accordance with Idaho Code, the following records shall NOT be subject to public inspection 
or copying:  
 



 4260-2 (ISBA 2015) 

1. Any public record exempt from disclosure by federal or state law or federal regulations to 
the extent specifically provided for by such law or regulation. 
 

2. Retired employees' and retired public officials' home addresses, home telephone 
numbers, and other financial and non-financial membership records. 

  
3. Records of a current or former employee other than the employee's duration of 

employment with the District, position held, and location of employment.  This 
exemption from disclosure does not include the contracts of employment or any 
remuneration, including reimbursement of expenses.  However, all other personnel 
information relating to a public employee or applicant including, but not limited to, 
information regarding sex, race, marital status, birth date, home address and telephone 
number, net pay, applications, testing and scoring materials, grievances, correspondence, 
and performance evaluations shall not be disclosed to the public without the employee's 
or applicant's written consent. 
 

4. Records relating to the appraisal of real property, timber, or mineral rights prior to its 
acquisition, sale, or lease by the District. 

  
5. Any estimate prepared by the District that details the cost of a public project until such 

time as disclosed, or bids are opened, or upon award of the contract for construction of 
the public project. 

 
6. Records of any risk retention or self-insurance program prepared in anticipation of 

litigation, or for analysis of, or settlement of potential or actual money damage claims 
against the District or its employees except as otherwise discoverable under the Idaho or 
federal rules of civil procedure.  These records shall include but are not limited to claims 
evaluations, investigatory records, computerized reports of losses, case reserves, internal 
documents, and correspondence relating thereto.  At the time any claim is concluded, 
only statistical data and actual amounts paid in settlement from public funds shall be 
deemed a public record unless otherwise ordered to be sealed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction. Provided however, nothing in this subsection is intended to limit the attorney 
client privilege or attorney work product privilege otherwise available to any public 
agency or independent public body corporate and politic. 
 

7. Computer programs developed or purchased by or for the District for its own use.  As 
used in this subsection, "computer program" means a series of instructions or statements 
which permit the functioning of a computer system in a manner designed to provide 
storage, retrieval, and manipulation of data from the computer system, and any associated 
documentation and source material that explain how to operate the computer program. 
This does not include: 

 
A. The original data including but not limited to numbers, text, voice, graphics, and 

images; 
B. Analysis, compilation, and other manipulated forms of the original data produced 

by use of the program; or 



 4260-3 (ISBA 2015) 

C. The mathematical or statistical formulas that would be used if the manipulated 
forms of the original data were to be produced manually. 
 

8. Personal information from any file maintained for students.  Information from student 
records shall be disclosed only in accordance with the requirements of the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, Idaho Code, and adopted District policy. 

 
9. Test questions, scoring keys, or other examination data used to administer academic tests. 

 
10. Records relevant to a controversy to which the District is a party, but which records 

would not be available to another party under the rules of pretrial discovery for cases 
pending resolution. 

 
11. Records of buildings, facilities, infrastructures, and systems when the disclosure of such 

information would jeopardize the safety of persons or the public safety.  Such records 
may include emergency evacuation, escape, or other emergency response plans; 
vulnerability assessments; operation and security manuals; plans; blueprints; or security 
codes. 

 
However, all personnel records of a current or former public official reflecting public service or 
employment history, classification, pay grade and step, longevity, gross salary and salary history, 
status, workplace, and employing agency are subject to public inspection and copying. 
 
If the record requested for inspection and/or copying contains both information exempted from 
disclosure and nonexempt information, the District shall, to the extent practicable, produce the 
record with the exempt portion deleted and shall provide a written explanation for the deletion. 
 
Response to Requests 
 
The District shall require that a public records request be submitted in writing upon a form 
prescribed by the District with the requester’s name, mailing address, email address, and 
telephone number.  A request for public records may be conducted by electronic mail. The 
request shall specifically describe the subject matter and records sought, including a specific date 
range for when the records sought were created. The request shall be as specific as possible, 
describing the records sought in enough detail to let the Public Records Coordinator find the 
records with reasonable effort. The District may provide the requester information to help the 
requester narrow the scope of the request or to help the requester make the request more specific 
when the records requested are voluminous or costly. 
 
The District shall either grant or deny a person’s request to examine or copy public records 
within three working days of the date of the receipt of a request for public records.  If a longer 
period of time is needed to locate or retrieve the records, the District shall notify the person 
requesting the records of the same and provide the records to such person not later than ten 
working days following the request.  In the event an individual requests a record be provided in 
electronic format, the District shall provide the record in electronic format if the record is 
available in that format.  If a record is requested in electronic format and the record cannot easily 



 4260-4 (ISBA 2015) 

be converted to electronic format within ten working days, the District shall notify the person 
requesting the records of this fact and provide them with an estimate of the time necessary to 
complete the conversion.  The documents shall then be provided at a time mutually agreeable to 
the parties giving consideration to any limitations that may exist regarding electronic conversion.   
 
If the District fails to respond, the request shall be deemed to be denied within ten working days 
following the request.  If the District denies the request for examination or copying the public 
records or denies in part and grants in part the request for examination and copying of the public 
records, the Public Records Coordinator shall notify the person in writing of the denial or partial 
denial of the request for the public record.  The notice of denial or partial denial shall state that 
the attorney for the District has reviewed the request or shall state that the District has had an 
opportunity to consult with an attorney regarding the request for examination or copying of a 
record and has chosen not to do so.  The notice of denial or partial denial also shall indicate the 
statutory authority for the denial and indicate clearly the right to appeal the denial or partial 
denial and the time periods for doing so.   
 
The Public Records Coordinator is authorized to seek an injunction to prevent the disclosure of 
records otherwise suitable for disclosure when it is determined that there is reasonable cause to 
believe that the disclosure would not be in the public interest and would substantially or 
irreparably damage any person or would substantially or irreparably damage vital governmental 
functions. 
 
Fee Waiver 
 
The District will adhere to its copying fee schedule unless it is determined by the Public Records 
Coordinator that the individual making such a request has demonstrated information sufficient to 
fulfill the following test: 
 

1. That the requester’s examination and/or copying of public records is likely to contribute 
significantly to the public’s understanding of the operations and activities of the 
government; 

2. That the requester’s examination and/or copying of public records is not primarily in the 
individual interest of the requester including, but not limited to, the requester’s interest in 
litigation in which the requester is or may become a party; and 

 
3. That the requester’s examination and/or copying of public records will not occur if fees 

are charged because the requester has insufficient financial resources to pay such fees. 
 
Upon a request that fees not be charged, and the Public Records Coordinator’s consideration of 
the above factors, the Public Records Coordinator shall notify the requester in writing of their 
decision within ten working days following the request.  
  
If the fee waiver is denied, the requester shall then have seven days to file an appeal of the denial 
with the Superintendent.  The Superintendent shall review the denial and either affirm or reverse 
the denial of the Public Records Coordinator in writing within ten working days of receipt of the 
appeal.  In the event that the Superintendent is the Public Records Coordinator then the appeal 



 4260-5 (ISBA 2015) 

shall be filed within seven days with the Board.  At the Board’s next regularly scheduled 
meeting, the Board shall review the denial of fee waiver and either affirm or reverse it.  There 
shall be no further appeal beyond the Board.   
 
The request shall not be fulfilled or prepared, and the time for response will not begin to run, 
until such time as the final determination as to fees has been addressed and any fees to be 
charged have been paid.  
A requester may not file multiple requests for public records solely to avoid payment of fees.  If 
the District suspects that this is the case, it can aggregate the related requests and charge based 
upon its copying fee schedule.     
 
Fee Schedule 
 
The copying fee schedule of the District is as follows:   
 

1. The District shall not charge a fee for the first 100 pages of records or the first two hours 
of labor in responding to a request. 
 

2. Copies of public records - 25¢ per page [cannot exceed actual cost] for copies beyond the 
first 100 pages or beyond the first two hours of labor in responding to a request. 
 

3. The District will charge for the labor costs associated with locating and copying 
documents if: 

 
A. The request is for more than 100 pages of records; 
B. The request includes nonpublic information that must be redacted from the public 

records; or 
C. The labor associated with locating and copying the records exceeds two hours.  

 
4. The fees for labor associated with responding to a public records request shall be charged 

at the per hour pay rate of the lowest-paid administrative staff employee of the District 
who is necessary and qualified to process the request.  

 
5. The fees associated with redactions required to be made by an attorney employed by the 

District shall be charged at the lowest-paid hourly rate of the lowest paid attorney 
employed by the District or, if there are no attorneys employed by the District, the rate 
shall be no more than the usual and customary rate of the attorney retained by the 
District. 

 
6. Copy of a duplicate computer disc or similar record system the fee shall not exceed: 

 
A. The District’s cost of copying the information in that form;  
B. The District’s cost of conversion, or the cost of conversion charged by a third 

party, if the electronic record must be converted to electronic form. 
 



 4260-6 (ISBA 2015) 

Fees shall be collected in advance.  The District shall provide requesters with an itemized 
statement of fees to show the cost per page for copies and the hourly rate of employees and 
attorneys involved in responding to the request.  
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross References: 3570-3570P Student Records 
 4130 Public Access to District Website 
 8605 Retention of District Records 
 
Legal References: Title 74 Chapter 1 Public Records Act 
 I.C. § 74-204 Written Minutes of Meetings 
 IDAPA. 08.01.01.100 Procedures for Responding to Requests for 

Examination and/or Copying Public Records 
 
Other References: Idaho Public Records Law Manual, July 2018 (available 

at https://www.ag.idaho.gov/content/uploads/201
8/04/PublicRecordsLaw.pdf) 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 1/11/16 
  6/11/18 



 4260F 

 4260F-1 (ISBA 2015) 

 
District Record Request Form 

 
Request for Public Records 

 
I request:     to examine       to copy        to receive an electronic copy of the following records: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Date Records Requested Were Created: 

 Beginning: ________________________________________________________________ 

 Ending: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
Name (Please Print) 
__________________________________________________________________  
 
Mailing Address: 

__________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________ 
  Date of Request 
 
_____________________________________________ 
  Daytime Phone Number 
 
Received By:  __________________________________________ 

Date Received: __________________________________________ 

Public Agency  __________________________________________ 
 
_____  Initial if Applicable:  More than three (3) working days are needed to locate or retrieve the 
requested records. A response shall be provided within ten (10) working days of the request.  
 
Payment received for __________________ copies   ___________________ 
            Amount Received 
 
Payment received for __________________labor   ___________________ 
            Amount Received 
 
________________  Receipt Number 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Criminal History & Background Checks 

 
POLICY NO: 5110   

PAGE 1 of 3 

 

 5110-1 (ISBA 2008) 

General 
It is the policy of the District not to employ or to continue the employment of classified, 
professional or administrative personnel who may be deemed unsuited for service by reason of 
arrest and/or criminal conviction.  While an arrest or conviction of a crime, in and of itself, may 
not be an automatic bar to employment, if an arrest or conviction relates to suitability of the 
individual to perform duties in a particular position, such person may be denied employment or 
in the case of current employees, may face disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
It is the policy of this District to perform criminal history checks as required by Idaho law and to 
perform other types of background checks on employees or volunteers including, but not limited to: 
 
1. Contacting prior employers for references; 
2. Contacting personal references; and/or 
3. Contacting other persons who, in the discretion of the District, could provide valuable 
information to the District. 
 
Where a prior conviction is discovered, the District will consider the nature of the offense, the 
date of the offense, and the relationship between the offense and the position for which application 
is sought, or the person is employed. Any individual convicted of a felony offense listed in I.C. § 
33-1208(2) shall not be hired. 
 
If an applicant or employee makes any misrepresentation or willful omissions of fact regarding 
prior criminal history, such misrepresentation or omission shall be sufficient cause for 
disqualification of the applicant or termination of employment. 
 
Any certificated employee who was hired prior to July 1, 2020 and has their teaching certificate 
revoked by the Professional Standards Commission due to updated crimes listed in I.C. § 33-1208 
shall be granted an informal review based on their contract category, as outlined in Policy 5105. 
 
Initial Hires 
In order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the students of the District, Idaho law requires 
the following employees hired on or after July 1, 2008 to be subject to criminal history checks. The 
list is to include, but is not limited to: 
 

1. Certificated and non-certificated employees; 
2. All applicants for certificates; 
3. Substitute staff; 
4. Individuals involved in other types of student training such as practicums and 

internships; and 
5. All individuals who have unsupervised contact with students. 



 5110-2 (ISBA 2008) 

A criminal history check shall be based on a complete ten (10) finger fingerprint card or scan and 
include, at a minimum, the following: 
 

1. Idaho bureau of criminal identification; 
2. Federal bureau of investigation (FBI) criminal history check; and 
3. Statewide sex offender register. 

 
Employees will be required to undergo a criminal history check within five (5) days of starting 
employment or unsupervised contact with students, whichever is sooner. 
 
The fee may be charged to an employee in accordance with Idaho Code. All criminal history 
check records will be kept on file at the State Department of Education. A copy of the records 
will be given to the employee upon request. 
 
Employee Arrest or Conviction 
All employees shall have the continuing duty to notify the District of any arrest or criminal 
conviction that occurs subsequent to being hired by the District. In the event that any employee, 
whether full-time or part-time, probationary or non-probationary, classified or certified, is 
arrested, charged or indicted for a criminal violation of any kind, whether misdemeanor or 
felony, with the exception of minor traffic infractions, he/she is required to report such arrest 
promptly to the employee’s supervisor or department head within one (1) business day unless 
mitigating circumstances exist.  This reporting requirement applies regardless of whether such 
arrest has occurred on-duty or off-duty.  Failure to comply with this reporting requirement shall 
be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
Additionally, if an employee has a protection order served against him/her, the employee shall 
follow the same reporting requirements as outlined above. 
 
Supervisors or department heads shall contact the Superintendent or designee upon receiving 
notification that an employee has been arrested or has a protection order served against him/her. 
The District reserves the right to determine appropriate disciplinary action in such cases, up to 
and including termination, depending upon the facts and circumstances surrounding the incident. 
 
The District has discretion to terminate or take other action against any employee that has either 
been convicted of one (1) or more of the felony offenses set forth in I.C. § 33-1208 or made a 
material misrepresentation or omission on their job application. 
 
Substitute teachers 
The State Department of Education shall maintain a statewide list of substitute teachers. To 
remain on the statewide substitute teacher list, the substitute teacher shall undergo a criminal 
history check every five (5) years. If a substitute teacher has undergone a criminal history check 
within five (5) years as a result of employment with another District, the District, may in its sole 
discretion, not require a substitute to undergo a criminal history check.  If the District does desire 
a substitute teacher who has undergone a criminal history check within the last five (5) years to 
undergo an additional criminal history check, the District will pay the costs of such check. 



 5110-3 (ISBA 2008) 

 
Other employees 
The District may require that any employee be subjected to criminal history checks. If required, 
the District will pay the costs of such checks. 
 
Volunteers 
Any volunteer in the District who has regular unsupervised access to students, as determined by 
the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee, shall submit to a fingerprint criminal 
background investigation conducted by the appropriate law enforcement agency prior to 
consideration for volunteering in the schools of this District. 
 
Any requirement of a volunteer to submit to a fingerprint background check shall be in 
compliance with the Volunteers for Children Act of 1998 and applicable federal regulations. If a 
volunteer has any prior record of arrest or conviction by any local, state, or federal law 
enforcement agency for an offense other than a minor traffic violation, the facts must be 
reviewed by the Superintendent, who shall decide whether the volunteer is suitable to be in the 
presence of the students in the District.   
 
Contractors 
The District maintains a safe environment for students by developing a system that cross-checks 
all contractors or other persons who have irregular contact with students against the statewide sex 
offender register. 
 
Confidentiality 
Outstanding warrants, criminal charges and/or protective orders may be confidential. An 
employee who is provided access to such information relating to another employee shall ensure 
that the information remains confidential.  If an employee discloses such information without 
authorization, the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 5105  Certificated Personnel Employment 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-130 Criminal History Checks for  
School district employees or applicants for certificates 

 I.C. § 33-1208  
 I.C. §33-512 Governance of Schools 
 I.C. §74-106 Records Exempt from Disclosure  
 Public Law 105-251, Volunteers for Children Act 
 
Policy History  
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA  
REVISED: 6/13/16 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Evaluation of Certificated Personnel 

 
POLICY NO: 5340   

PAGE 1 of 6 
 

 

 5340-1 (ISBA 2014) 

The District has a firm commitment to performance evaluation of District personnel, whatever 
their category and level, through the medium of a formalized system. The primary purpose of 
such evaluation is to assist personnel in professional development, in achieving District goals, 
and to assist with decisions regarding personnel actions. This policy applies to certificated 
personnel, but the District shall differentiate between non-instructional and pupil instructional 
personnel. The Superintendent is hereby directed to create procedures that differentiate 
between certificated non-instructional and certificated pupil instructional personnel in a way 
that aligns with the Charlotte Danielson Framework for Teaching Second Edition to the 
extent possible and aligns to the pupil staff’s applicable national standards. 
 
Each certificated staff member shall receive at least one (1) written evaluation to be completed 
no later than June 1st for each annual contract year of employment and shall use multiple 
measures that are research based and aligned to the Charlotte Danielson Framework for 
Teaching Second Edition domains and components.  The evaluation of certificated personnel 
shall annually include a minimum of two (2) documented observations, one (1) of which shall 
be completed prior to January 1st. At least one of the documented observations will be a 
minimum of 30 continuous minutes.  A residency teacher will have two (2) observations and 
both will be at least 30 continuous minutes.  The formal written evaluation will be reviewed 
during a post evaluation conference to communicate results, discuss any concerns, commend 
the employee for a job well done, and to obtain signatures.  In situations where certificated 
personnel are unavailable for two (2) documented classroom observations, due to situations 
such as long-term illness, late year hire, etc., one (1) documented classroom observation is 
acceptable. 
 
Objectives 
The formal performance evaluation system is designed to: 
 
1. Maintain or improve each employee's job satisfaction and morale by letting him or 
her know that the supervisor is interested in his or her job progress and personal 
development; 
2. Serve as a systematic guide for supervisors in planning each employee's further training; 
3. Assure considered opinion of an employee's performance and focus maximum 
attention on achievement of assigned duties; 
4. Assist in determining and recording special talents, skills, and capabilities that 
might otherwise not be noticed or recognized; 
5. Assist in planning personnel moves and placements that will best utilize each 
employee's capabilities; 
6. Provide an opportunity for each employee to discuss job problems and interests with 
his or her supervisor; and 
7. Assemble substantiating data for use as a guide, although not necessarily the sole 
governing factor, for such purposes as wage adjustments, promotions, disciplinary action,  
 and termination. 
 
Responsibility 
The Superintendent or his or her designee shall have the overall responsibility for the 



 5340-2 (ISBA 2014) 

administration and monitoring of the Performance Evaluation Program and will ensure the 
fairness and efficiency of its execution, including: 
 
1. Distributing proper evaluation forms in a timely manner; 
 
2. Ensuring completed evaluations are returned for filing by a specified date; 
 
3. Reviewing evaluations for completeness; 
 
4. Identifying discrepancies; 
 
5. Ensuring proper safeguards and filing of completed evaluations; 
 
6. Creating and implementing a plan for ongoing training for evaluators and 
certificated personnel on the District’s evaluation standards, forms, and processes and 
a plan for collecting and using data gathered from evaluations; 
 
7. Creating a plan for ongoing review of the District’s Performance Evaluation Program that 
includes stakeholder input from teachers, Board Members, administrators, parents/guardians, 
and other interested parties; 
 
8. Creating a procedure for remediation for employees that receive evaluations indicating 
that remediation would be an appropriate course of action; and 
 
9. Creating an individualized evaluation rating system for how evaluations will be used to 
identify proficiency and record growth over time with a minimum of three four rankings 
used to differentiate performance of certificate holders including: unsatisfactory being 
equal to a rating of 1; basic being equal to a rating of 2; and proficient being equal to a 
rating of 3; and A fourth rating of distinguished being equal to 4 may also be used. 
 
The Immediate Supervisor is the employee's evaluator and is responsible for: 
 
1. Continuously observing and evaluating an employee's job performance including a 
minimum of two documented observations annually for certificated personnel, one of 
which shall be completed prior to January 1st of each year; 
 
2. Holding periodic counseling sessions with each employee to discuss job performance; 
 
3. Completing Performance Evaluations as required; and 
 
4. The individuals assigned this responsibility shall have received training in conducting 
evaluations based on the statewide framework for evaluations within the immediate previous 
five years of conducting any evaluations. 
 

Written Evaluation 
A written summative evaluation will be completed for each certificated employee by June 1st. 
A copy will be given to the employee.  The original will be retained in employee’s personnel 
file. The evaluation should be reviewed annually and revised as necessary to indicate any 



 5340-3 (ISBA 2014) 

significant changes in duties or responsibilities.  The evaluation is designed to increase 
planning and relate performance to assigned responsibilities through joint understanding 
between the evaluator and the employee as to the job description and major performance 
objectives. 
 
The written evaluation will identify the sources of data used in conducting the evaluation. 
Aggregate data shall be considered as part of the District and individual school needs 
assessment in determining professional development offerings. 
 
Evaluation Measures 
Observations: Periodic classroom observations will be included in the evaluation process 
with a minimum of two documented observations annually for certificated personnel, one of 
which shall be completed prior to January 1st.  In situations where certificated personnel are 
unavailable for two documented classroom observations, due to situations such as long-term 
illness, late-year hire, etc., one documented classroom observation is acceptable. 
 
Professional Practice: A majority of the evaluation of certificated personnel will be 
comprised of Professional Practice based on the Charlotte Danielson Framework for 
Teaching Second Edition.  The evaluation will include at least one of the following as a 
measure to inform the Professional Practice portion:  input received from parents/guardians, 
input received from students, and/or portfolios.  The District has chosen parent or guardian 
input forms as its measure to inform the Professional Practice portion. Parent or guardian 
input forms will be made available. 
 
Student Achievement: 
Instructional staff evaluations must include, in part, measurable student achievement as 
defined in Section 33-1001, Idaho Code, applicable to the subjects and grade ranges taught 
by the instructional staff.  All other certificated staff evaluations must include measurable 
student achievement or student success indicators as defined in Section 33- 1001, as 
applicable to the position.  This portion of the evaluation may be calculated using current 
and/or the immediate past year’s data and may use one or both years of data.  Growth in 
student achievement may be considered as an optional measure for all other school-based and 
District-based staff, as determined by the Board. 
 
Charlotte Danielson Framework: The evaluation will be aligned with minimum State 
standards and based upon the Charlotte Danielson Framework for Teaching Second Edition 
and will include, at a minimum, the following general criteria upon which the Professional 
Practice portion will be based.  Individual domain and component ratings must be determined 
based on a combination of professional practice and student achievement as specified above. 
 
1. Planning and Preparation 
 
A. Demonstrating Knowledge of Content and Pedagogy; 
B. Demonstrating Knowledge of Students; 
C. Setting Instructional Outcomes; 
D. Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources; 
E. Designing Coherent Instruction; and 
F. Designing Student Assessments. 



 5340-4 (ISBA 2014) 

 
2. Classroom Learning Environment 
 
A. Creating an Environment of Respect and Rapport; 
B. Establishing a Culture for Learning; 
C. Managing Classroom Procedures; 
D. Managing Student Behavior; and 
E. Organizing Physical Space. 
 
3. Instruction and Use of Assessment 
 
A. Communicating with Students; 
B. Using Questioning and Discussion Techniques; 
C. Engaging Students in Learning; 
D. Using Assessment in Instruction; and 
E. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness. 
 
4. Professional Responsibilities 
 
A. Reflecting on Teaching; 
B. Maintaining Accurate Records; 
C. Communicating with Families; 
D. Participating in a Professional Community; 
E. Growing and Developing Professionally; and 
F. Showing Professionalism.   

Meeting with the Employee 

Counseling Sessions: Counseling sessions between supervisors and employees may be 
scheduled periodically.  During these sessions, an open dialogue should occur which allows 
the exchange of performance oriented information.  The employee should be informed of 
how he or she has performed to date.  If the employee is not meeting performance 
expectations, the employee should be informed of the steps necessary to improve performance 
to the desired level. Counseling sessions should include, but not be limited to, the following: 
job responsibilities, performance of duties, and attendance.  A memorandum for record will 
be prepared following each counseling session and maintained by the supervisor. 
 
Communication of Results: Each evaluation shall include a meeting with the affected 
employee to communicate evaluation results.  At the scheduled meeting with the employee, the 
supervisor will: 
 
1. Discuss the evaluation with the employee, emphasizing strong and weak points in job 

performance. Commend the employee for a job well done if applicable and discuss 
specific corrective action if warranted. Set mutual goals for the employee to reach 
before the next performance evaluation.  Recommendations should specifically state 
methods to correct weaknesses and/or prepare the employee for future promotions. 

 
2. Allow the employee to make any written comments he or she desires.  Inform the 



 5340-5 (ISBA 2014) 

employee that he or she may turn in a written rebuttal/appeal of any portion of the 
evaluation within seven days and outline the process for rebuttal/appeal.  Have the 
employee sign the evaluation indicating that he or she has been given a copy and 
initial after supervisor’s comments. 

 
No earlier than seven days following the meeting, if the supervisor has not received any 
written rebuttal/appeal, the supervisor will forward the original evaluation in a sealed 
envelope, marked “Personnel-Evaluation” to the Superintendent, or the designee, for review.  
The supervisor will also retain a copy of the completed form. 
 
Rebuttals/Appeal 
Within seven days from the date of the evaluation meeting with their supervisor, the employee 
may file a written rebuttal/appeal of any portion of the evaluation. The written rebuttal/appeal 
shall state the specific content of the evaluation with which the employee disagrees, a 
statement of the reason(s) for disagreement, and the amendment to the evaluation requested. 
 
If a written rebuttal/appeal is received by the supervisor within seven days, the supervisor may 
conduct additional meetings or investigative activities necessary to address the rebuttal/appeal. 
Subsequent to these activities, and within a period of ten working days, the supervisor may 
provide the employee with a written response either amending the evaluation as requested by 
the employee or stating the reason(s) why the supervisor will not be amending the evaluation 
as requested. 
 
If the supervisor chooses to amend the evaluation as requested by the employee then the 
amended copy of the evaluation will be provided to, and signed by, the employee. The 
original amended evaluation will then be forwarded to the Superintendent, or the designee, 
for review in a sealed envelope, marked Personnel-Evaluation.  The supervisor will also 
retain a copy of the completed form. 
 
If the supervisor chooses not to amend the evaluation as requested by the employee then the 
evaluation along with the written rebuttal/appeal, and the supervisor’s response, if any, will 
be forwarded to the Superintendent, or the designee, for review in a sealed envelope, 
marked Personnel-Evaluation.  The supervisor will also retain a copy of the completed 
evaluation including any rebuttal/appeal and responses. 
 
Action 
Each evaluation will include identification of the actions, if any, available to the District as a 
result of the evaluation as well as the procedure(s) for implementing each action.  Available 
actions include, but are not limited to, recommendations for renewal of employment, non-
renewal of employment, probation, and others as determined. Should any action be taken as 
a result of an evaluation to not renew an individual’s contract the District will comply with 
the requirements and procedures established by State law. 
 
Records 
Permanent records of each certificated personnel’s evaluation and any properly submitted 
rebuttal/appeal documentation will be maintained in the employee’s personnel file. All 
evaluation records, including rebuttal/appeal documentation, will be kept confidential within 



 5340-6 (ISBA 2014) 

the parameters identified in State and federal law regarding the right to privacy. 
 
Reporting 
Any subsequent changes to the District’s evaluation plan shall be resubmitted to the State 
Department of Education for approval. The District shall report the summative rankings, the 
number of components rated as unsatisfactory, whether a majority of the certificated 
personnel’s students met their measurable student achievement or growth targets or student 
success indicators as well as what measures were used, and whether an individualized 
professional learning plan is in place for all certificated personnel evaluations, annually to the 
State Department of Education. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-514 Issuance of Annual Contracts – Support Programs –

Categories of Contracts – Optional Placement – Written Evaluation 
 I.C. § 33-515 Issuance of Renewable Contracts 
 I.C. § 33-518 Employee Personnel Files 
 I.C. § 33-1001 Definitions 
 IDAPA 08.02.02.120 Local District Evaluation Policy 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 12/09/13  
ISBA 
REVISED: 8/11/14  
 7/13/15 
 6/13/16 
 1/9/17 
 7/10/17 
 3/12/18 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Administrators 

 
POLICY NO: 6400   

PAGE 1 of 7 
 

 

 6400-1 (ISBA 2017) 

 
School administrators are the chief administrators of their assigned schools.  The primary 
responsibility of school administrators is to supervise the operation and management of their 
assigned schools. They shall be under the direct supervision of the Superintendent or designee. 
The majority of the school administrators’ time shall be spent on curriculum and staff 
development through formal and informal activities establishing clear lines of communication 
regarding the school rules, accomplishments, practices, and policies with parents, students, and 
teachers. School administrators are responsible for management of their staff, maintenance of the 
facility and equipment, administration of the educational program, control of the students 
attending the school, management of the school’s budget, and communication between the 
school and the community. 
 
Evaluation of School Administrators 
 
Each school administrator shall receive at least one written evaluation to be completed no later 
than June 1st for each annual contract year of employment. Each school administrator evaluation 
shall use multiple measures that are research based and aligned to the State minimum standards 
based on the Interstate School Leaders Licensure Consortium (ISLLC) standards and include 
proof of proficiency in conducting teacher evaluations using the State’s adopted model, the 
Charlotte Danielson Framework for Teaching Second Edition. 
 
The process of developing criteria and procedures for principal evaluations will allow 
opportunities for input from stakeholders, including the Board, administrators, teachers, and 
parents/guardians.  
 
Evaluation Objectives 
 
The District’s School Administrator Evaluation Program is designed to: 
 

1. Maintain or improve each school administrator’s job satisfaction and morale by letting 
him or her know that the Superintendent is interested in his or her job progress and 
personal development; 
 

2. Serve as a systematic guide for planning each school administrator’s further training and 
professional development; 

 
3. Assure considered opinion of a school administrator’s performance and focus maximum 

attention on achievement of assigned duties; 
 

4. Assist in determining and recording special talents, skills, and capabilities that might 
otherwise not be noticed or recognized; 

5. Assist in planning personnel moves and placements that will best utilize each school 
administrator’s capabilities; 
 



 6400-2 (ISBA 2017) 

6. Provide an opportunity for each school administrator to discuss job problems and 
interests with the Superintendent/Director; and 

 
7. Assemble substantiating data for use as a guide, although not necessarily the sole 

governing factor, for such purposes as wage adjustments, promotions, disciplinary action, 
and termination. 

  
Responsibility 
 
The Superintendent/Director shall have the responsibility for administering and monitoring the 
District’s School Administrator Evaluation Program and will ensure the fairness and efficiency 
of its execution, including:  
 

1. Creating and implementing a plan for ongoing training and professional development and 
the funding thereof for school administrators in the District’s Performance Evaluation 
Program, including evaluation standards, forms, procedures, and processes and a plan for 
collecting and using data gathered from evaluations; 

 
2. Creating a plan for ongoing review of the District’s School Administrator Evaluation 

Program that includes stakeholder input from teachers, Board Members, administrators, 
parents/guardians, and other interested parties; 

 
3. Creating a procedure for remediation for school administrators that receive evaluations 

indicating that remediation would be an appropriate course of action; 
 

4. Creating an individualized evaluation rating system for how school administrator 
evaluations will be used to identify proficiency and record growth over time with a 
minimum of three four rankings used to differentiate performance of school 
administrators including:  
 

A. Unsatisfactory being equal to a rating of 1;  
B. Basic being equal to a rating of 2; and  
C. Proficient being equal to a rating of 3; and 
D. Distinguished being equal to a rating of 4.  

 
A fourth evaluation rating of Distinguished, being equal to “4,” may be used in addition 
to the three (3) minimum rankings at the discretion of the Board; and 
 

5. Completing school administrator evaluations annually, ensuring proper safeguards, and 
filing completed evaluations. 

 
The individuals assigned this responsibility shall have received training in administrator 
evaluations based on the statewide framework for evaluations. 

 
 
Written Evaluation 



 6400-3 (ISBA 2017) 

 
A written summative evaluation will be completed for each school administrator by the 
Superintendent/the appropriate Director no later than June 1st for each annual contract year of 
employment. A copy will be given to the school administrator. The original will be retained in 
the official personnel file. The evaluation is designed to increase planning and relate 
performance to assigned responsibilities through joint understanding between the 
Superintendent/the Director, and the school administrator as to the job description and major 
performance objectives. 
 
The evaluation will identify the sources of data used in conducting the evaluation. Proficiency in 
conducting observations and evaluating effective teacher performance shall be included as one 
source of data. 
                                                                                                                                       
Evaluation Measures and Criteria 
 
Professional Practice: School administrators must receive an evaluation in which a majority of 
the summative evaluation results are based on Professional Practice. All measures within the 
Professional Practice portion of the evaluation must be aligned at a minimum to the following 
Domains and Components based upon the Idaho Standards for Effective Principals. 
 
Domain 1: School Climate: The school administrator promotes the success of all students by 
advocating, nurturing, and sustaining a school culture and instructional program conducive to 
student learning and staff professional development. The school administrator articulates and 
promotes high expectations for teaching and learning while responding to diverse community 
interests and needs. 
 

1. School Culture: The school administrator establishes a safe, collaborative, and 
supportive culture ensuring all students are successfully prepared to meet the 
requirements for tomorrow’s careers and life endeavors; 
 

2. Communication: The school administrator is proactive in communicating the vision and 
goals of the school or District, the plans for the future, and the successes and challenges 
to all stakeholders; and 
 

3. Advocacy: The school administrator advocates for education, the District and school, 
teachers, parents, and students and engenders school support and involvement. 

 
Domain 2: Collaborative Leadership: The school administrator promotes the success of all 
students by ensuring management of the organization, operations, and resources for a safe, 
efficient, and effective learning environment. In collaboration with others, he or she uses 
appropriate data to establish rigorous, concrete goals in the context of student achievement and 
instructional programs. The school administrator uses research and/or best practices in student 
achievement, instructional programs, and improving the education program. 
  



 6400-4 (ISBA 2017) 

1. Shared Leadership: The school administrator fosters shared leadership that takes 
advantage of individual expertise, strengths, and talents, and cultivates professional 
growth; 

2. Priority Management: The school administrator organizes time and delegates 
responsibilities to balance administrative/managerial, educational, and community 
leadership priorities; 

3. Transparency: The school administrator seeks input from stakeholders and takes all 
perspectives into consideration when making decisions; 

4. Leadership Renewal: The school administrator strives to continuously improve 
leadership skills through professional development, self-reflection, and utilization of 
input from others; and 

5. Accountability: The school administrator establishes high standards for professional, 
legal, ethical, and fiscal accountability for self and others. 

 
Domain 3: Instructional Leadership: The school administrator promotes the success of all 
students by facilitating the development, articulation, implementation, and stewardship of a 
vision of learning that is shared and supported by the school community.  The school 
administrator provides leadership for major initiatives and change efforts and uses research 
and/or best practices in improving the education program. 
 

1. Innovation: The school administrator seeks and implements innovative and effective 
solutions that comply with general and special education law; 
 

2. Instructional Vision: The school administrator ensures that instruction is guided by a 
shared, research-based instructional vision that articulates what students do to effectively 
learn; 
 

3. High Expectations: The school administrator sets high expectation for all students 
academically, behaviorally, and in all aspects of student well-being; 
 

4. Continuous Improvement of Instruction: The school administrator has proof of 
proficiency in assessing teacher performance based upon the Charlotte Danielson 
Framework for Teaching Second Edition and aligns resources, policies, and procedures 
toward continuous improvement of instructional practice guided by the instructional 
vision; 
 

5. Evaluation: The school administrator uses teacher/principal evaluation and other 
formative feedback mechanisms to continuously improve teacher/principal effectiveness; 
and 
 

6. Recruitment and Retention: The school administrator recruits and maintains a high 
quality staff. 

 
The evaluation will also include at least one of the following as a measure to inform the 
Professional Practice portion: 
 



 6400-5 (ISBA 2017) 

1. Input received from parents or guardians; 
2. Input received from students; 
3. Input received from teachers; and/or 
4. Portfolios. 

 
The District has chosen #3 above, “input received from teachers,” as one of its measures to 
inform the Professional Practice portion.  The Board shall determine the manner and weight of 
parental input, student input, teacher input, and/or portfolios on the evaluation. 
 
Student Achievement:  Part of the evaluation must be based on multiple objective measures of 
growth in measurable student achievement as defined in Section 33-1001, Idaho Code. This 
portion of the evaluation may be calculated using current and/or the immediate past year’s data 
and may use one or both years of data. Growth in student achievement may be considered as an 
optional measure for all other school-based and District-based administrators, as determined by 
the Board. 
 
Proof of Proficiency in Teacher Evaluations 
 
Proof of proficiency in evaluating teacher performance shall be required of all individuals 
assigned the responsibility for appraising, observing, or evaluating certificated personnel 
performance.  The individuals assigned the responsibility of evaluating school administrators 
shall have received training in administrator evaluations based on the statewide framework for 
evaluations.  
 
Communicating Evaluation Results 
 
Each evaluation shall include a meeting with the Superintendent/Director, and school 
administrator wherein the Superintendent/Director will: 
 

1. Discuss the evaluation with the school administrator, emphasizing strong and weak points 
in job performance.  Commend the school administrator for a job well done if applicable 
and discuss specific corrective action if warranted.  Recommendations should specifically 
state methods to correct weaknesses.  Discuss possible goals for the school administrator 
to reach before the next performance evaluation. 
 

2. Allow the school administrator to make any written comments he or she desires.  Inform 
the school administrator that he or she may turn in a written rebuttal/appeal of any 
portion of the evaluation within seven days and outline the process for rebuttal/appeal.  
Have the school administrator sign the evaluation indicating that he or she has been given 
a copy. 

 
Rebuttal/Appeal 
 
Within seven days from the date of the evaluation meeting with the Superintendent/Director, the 
school administrator may file a written rebuttal/appeal of any portion of the evaluation.  The 
written rebuttal/appeal shall state the specific content of the evaluation with which the school 



 6400-6 (ISBA 2017) 

administrator disagrees, a statement of the reason(s) for disagreement, and the amendment to the 
evaluation requested.  
 
If a written rebuttal/appeal is received by the Superintendent/Director within seven days, the 
Superintendent/Director shall provide the school administrator with a written response within ten 
working days either amending the evaluation as requested by the school administrator or stating 
the reason(s) why the Superintendent/Director will not be amending the evaluation as requested.  
If the Superintendent/Director chooses to amend the evaluation as requested by the school 
administrator then the amended copy of the evaluation will be provided to, and signed by, the 
school administrator and retained in the school administrator’s official personnel file. 
 
If the Superintendent/Director chooses not to amend the evaluation as requested by the school 
administrator then the evaluation along with the written rebuttal/appeal, and the 
Superintendent’s/Director’s response, if any, will be retained in the  school administrator’s 
personnel file. 
 
Action 
 
Each evaluation will include identification of the actions, if any, available to the District as a 
result of the evaluation as well as the procedure(s) for implementing each action.  Available 
actions include, but are not limited to, recommendations for renewal of employment, non-
renewal of employment, probation, and others as determined.  Should any action be taken as a 
result of an evaluation not to renew a school administrator’s contract the District will comply 
with the requirements and procedures established by State law.  
 
Records 
 
Permanent records of each school administrator evaluation will be maintained in the school 
administrator’s official personnel file.  All evaluation records, including rebuttal/appeal 
documentation, will be kept confidential within the parameters identified in State and federal law 
regarding the right to privacy. 
 
Reporting 
 
Any subsequent changes to the District’s evaluation plan shall be resubmitted to the State 
Department of Education for approval.  The District shall report the rankings of individual 
principal evaluations annually to the State Department of Education.  
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-513 Professional Personnel 
  I.C. § 33-518 Employee Personnel Files 
  .C. § 33-1001 Definitions 
   08.02.02.121 Local District Evaluation Policy – School Principal 
 
 



 6400-7 (ISBA 2017) 

Policy History 
ADOPTED:  2/10/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 8/11/14 
 6/13/16 
 1/9/17 
 1/8/18 



 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Contracting for Transportation 
Services 

 
POLICY NO: 8160   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 8160-1 (ISBA) 

If the Board enters into a contract for transportation services, the contractor shall operate such 
equipment according to District policy and the rules and regulations of the State Board of 
Education.  All contracts for the transportation of students shall be in writing in a the current 
form developed by the State Department of Education approved by the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction. The contract shall be in effect for not more than five (5) years.  
 
The District may attach addenda to the model contract. Such addenda shall be submitted to the 
State Superintendent for review and approval. If the State Superintendent rejects the addenda or 
requires that changes be made to them, the Board may appeal to the State Board of Education.  
 
Prior to entering into a contract for transportation services, the District must advertise and bid for 
such services.  The contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. In determining 
what bid is the lowest responsible bidder, in addition to other enumerated specifications, the 
District will not only take into consideration the amount of the bid, the District will also consider 
the skill, ability and integrity of a contractor to do faithful and conscientious work and promptly 
fulfill the contract according to the letter and spirit. References may be contacted.    
 
A copy of the contract for transportation services will be filed with the the State 
Superintendent. Supervisor of Pupil Transportation in the Department of Education. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal References: I.C. § 33-1501 Transportation authorized 
 I.C. § 33-1510 Contracts for transportation service 
 IDAPA 08.02.02.190.05 Contract for Transportation Services 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED:  8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  


	Policy Update Letter 10 Aug 2020
	1120 Taking Office
	1120P Oath of Office 
	2425 Parental Rights
	Access to Learning Materials

	2520 Curricular Materials
	2540 Selection, Adoption & Removal of Curricular Materials
	3000 Entrance, Placement, and Transfer
	Entrance, Date, and Age
	Initial Enrollment
	Initial Placement
	Transfer
	Transfer from Persistently Dangerous Schools

	4175 Required Annual Notices
	4260 Records Available to Public
	4260F District Record Request Form
	5110 Criminal History & Background Checks
	5340 Evaluation and Probation of Certificated Employees
	6400 Administrators
	Evaluation of School Administrators
	Evaluation Objectives
	Responsibility
	Written Evaluation
	Evaluation Measures and Criteria
	Proof of Proficiency in Teacher Evaluations
	Communicating Evaluation Results
	Rebuttal/Appeal
	Action
	Records
	Reporting

	8160 Contracting for Transportation Services

